
 

 

 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING FINAL MINUTES 

March 28, 2016 
 
The regular meeting of the Board of Selectmen was held at 2:00 p.m. on Monday, March 28, 2016, 
in the first floor conference room of Independence Hall. 
 
Members Present: First Selectman Michael C. Tetreau, Selectman Laurie A. McArdle, Selectman 
Christopher W. Tymniak 
Others Present: Linda Gardiner, Bob Mayer, Joe Michelangelo, Scott Bartlett, Tom Dubrosky, 
FairTV, Terry Giegengack, Sands Cleary, Mike Zembruski, Dan Sciglimpaglia, Phil Dwyer, Karen 
Parks, Dr. David Title, Chief Gary MacNamara, Gerry Lombardo, Chris Lyddy, Brian Carey, Nancy 
Byrnes 
 
1) CALL TO ORDER 
First Selectman Tetreau called the meeting to order at 2:07 pm. 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Selectman Tymniak led the Pledge of Allegiance. First Selectman Tetreau then called for a 
moment of silence on the passing of former Fire Chief Dick Felner’s son.  
 
3) PUBLIC EXECUTIVE BUDGET SESSION (no public comment) 
Discussion of FY 2016-2017 Budget, including all Town Departments and Board of Education and 
Water Pollution Control Authority 
 
First Selectman Tetreau gave the Board two handouts—one on “Potential Board of Selectmen 
Adjustments to the FY17 First Selectman Recommendations” and another on the “Registrar of 
Voter Salary History.”  First Selectman said on Tuesday, the Selectmen will vote on revenues, 
expenses, the BOE, WPCA and the Registrar’s salaries.   
 
First Selectman Tetreau discussed the “Potential Board of Selectmen Adjustments to the FY17 
First Selectman Recommendations” handout in detail which he said is the list of items that was 
drawn up by the Board of Finance during the budget hearings.  He discussed revenue from FTC’s 
rent being increased by $4000.  Finance-Miscellaneous had $9,899 in the budget recommendation 
for a one-time Sandy Hook skewed average, but the actual revenue is $250 leaving a $9,649 
adjustment, thus lowering the revenue.  
 
Regarding expenditures, First Selectman Tetreau said this is the first time the Selectmen will 
approve the Registrar’s salaries since the State Statute states these salaries are to be set at the 
Selectmen level.   First Selectman Tetreau pointed out a one-page handout on the Registrar of 
Voter’s Salary History which includes a seasonal stipend. First Selectman Tetreau said if the 
Selectmen have questions on the Registrar’s salaries they can email him tonight in anticipation of 
tomorrow’s meeting.  Selectman McArdle asked if the Registrars have set hours.  First Selectman 
Tetreau said the average is less than 19.5 hours and there are no benefits.   He added that he 
recently found out the Registrars receive a stipend.  Selectman Tymniak asked if the stipend in the 
amount of $2500 is in written in a State Statute or anywhere else.   First Selectman Tetreau said it 
is not written anywhere to his knowledge.   Selectman Tymniak requested at least one Registrar 
attend tomorrow’s meeting.   First Selectman Tetreau said he called the Board of Finance (BOF) 
Chair to ask him for any background on the salary approval and stipend since the BOF had 
approved these salaries for years.  Selectman Tymniak asked if the stipend is $2500 per each 
Registrar or if that’s the total amount. CFO Bob Mayer said each Registrar gets $2500.    
 



Board of Selectmen 
March 20, 2013 
Page 2 
 

 

First Selectman Tetreau then proceeded to discuss additional expenditures on the handout.  
Regarding active employee benefits, he said the health insurance is being moved to a state 
partnership. The BOE teachers approved this new plan.  The Town is talking to unions and 
retirees. There are a lot of questions that have come up.  First Selectman Tetreau recommends not 
moving to the 2.0 health insurance on July 1, 2016 because experience has been better the last 
few months and the Town negotiated a reduced cost from Anthem by staying with them.  Active 
Employee Benefits has an increase of $297,534 versus a much higher number in January because 
the Town has since received better information.  Selectman Tymniak asked for the net. Mr. Mayer 
said about $300,000.  Selectman Tymniak asked if the Town is still considering moving to the state 
health insurance plan.  First Selectman Tetreau said yes, but can move during the year because of 
better progress and the same cost.  Selectman Tymniak asked if he can get the new numbers from 
AON. Mr. Mayer said he’ll provide those numbers.  First Selectman Tetreau asked Mr. Mayer to get 
those numbers to the Selectmen as soon as possible.   
 
First Selectman Tetreau said a transfer of $720 was made in Human Resources from one line to 
another resulting in a net zero amount.   Budget Director Linda Gardiner said a communications 
line item was created in this department because it didn’t have one.  
 
First Selectman Tetreau said the $3,420 line item from Fairfield Veteran’s Advisory and Information   
is being removed and moved to the Human and Social Services Department so there is no effect 
on the budget.  First Selectman Tetreau said there was a reduction in the Private School Bus 
Transportation department due to lower fuel costs which were miscalculated in last year’s actuals.  
Selectman Tymniak asked if there is a uniform decision in fuel costs across departments.  First 
Selectman Tetreau said there is.  Every department is given the same cost per gallon but only 
usage per department is different. Selectman Tymniak asked when the last time fuel costs were 
looked at.  Mrs. Gardiner said probably last month. Selectman Tymniak asked if it’s worth looking 
at again. Mrs. Gardiner said yes and it’s all about how long contracts run for.  First Selectman also 
discussed a transfer from Finance that had been approved by the RTM last year. It should go into 
the fees and professional services line and not to the regular payroll line.  
 
Regarding IT, First Selectman Tetreau discussed an increase of $19,200 to move the date center 
from Woods, which is the town’s it server back-up location.  He said this is a more cost effective 
solution since the back-up server is now in the Woods basement which can get flooded so there 
would be a need for a sump pump or a generator.  Selectman Tymniak asked if this funding is just 
for the Town servers and not those at the BOE. First Selectman Tetreau said that is correct. 
Regarding an increase of $140,000 for IT Capital, two servers would be moved from non-recurring 
capital.  This funding would be taken out of this year’s Contingency and the cost of the two servers 
would come from the operating budget.   This also addresses the need for two other servers 
needed in the future.   Regarding Solid Waste and Recycling, First Selectman Tetreau discussed a 
transfer of $64,000 for small projects leaving a net zero transfer or a line item to line item transfer.  
 
First Selectman Tetreau said all the library items on the handout are all transfers out of the Main 
Library into a separate budget set up in the Fairfield Woods Branch Library account at the request 
of some BOF members.  Mr. Mayer noted the BOF has not voted yet on this.  First Selectman 
Tetreau noted the Selectmen are not required to vote on this so maybe the Selectmen should just 
let the BOF vote on the library transfers. Selectman Tymniak asked if anyone talked to the library 
about this. First Selectman Tetreau said this has been in discussion and was put together by Head 
Librarian Karen Ronald.  
 



Board of Selectmen 
March 20, 2013 
Page 3 
 

 

Regarding the BOE, First Selectman Tetreau asked the Finance Department representatives at the 
meeting if the BOE health insurance has been updated yet. Budget Director Linda Gardiner said 
not yet so First Selectman Tetreau asked that this information is given to the Selectmen by its 
Tuesday meeting.     
 
First Selectman Tetreau said although the WPCA has a separate budget that is not funded by tax 
dollars, it uses the same insurance program as the Town so since there’s a town adjustment there 
needs to be a WPCA adjustment too.  Selectman McArdle asked if the sewer fees will increase.  
First Selectman Tetreau said more than likely yes.  Mr. Mayer said the handout has an error 
showing a $297,534 increase for health care so he will update the Board Tuesday with the correct 
number.    
 
Selectman Tymniak asked for an update on state aid.  Mr. Mayer said he’s received 
correspondence from CCM and expects the legislature to make cuts this fiscal year but has not 
received any numbers yet. Selectman Tymniak said the potential cut in state aid to Fairfield will be 
a factor in tomorrow’s vote.  First Selectman Tetreau said he heard the legislature won’t vote 
tomorrow or in April on state aid cuts so the Town won’t know for a while on what may be cut.  
Selectman Tymniak asked if there is a plan for this possible cut in aid. Mr. Mayer discussed some 
cost relief that would bring the town gross savings.  Selectman Tymniak asked if $446,000 will be 
added into the budget tomorrow.  Mr. Mayer said that number will be lower and may be around 
$300,000. Mr. Mayer talked about the Board of Assessment Appeals (BAA) and Motor Vehicle Tax 
issues. He said 258 cases were filed with the BAA as of this morning.  Mr. Mayer discussed the 
average discount given and the impact on the Grand List.   Regarding the Motor Vehicle Tax, 
$570,000 is the maximum risk. Mr. Mayer said he spoke to someone at the Motor Vehicles 
Department today.   First Selectman Tetreau noted how the State messed up the Motor Vehicle 
taxes and every town in the state is facing the same issue as Fairfield. Mr. Mayer said he’s getting 
information but it won’t be complete information.  First Selectman Tetreau asked Mr. Mayer to get 
the Selectmen updated information on this.  First Selectman Tetreau said he called the BOF Chair 
on the BAA appeals and hopes to relay that conversation to the Selectmen tomorrow.    

 
Selectman Tymniak asked if there is about $900,000 in new money to the tax increase. First 
Selectman Tetreau said that is roughly the number the BOF Chair had calculated at the last 
meeting.  Selectman Tymniak said since the Town is about $1 million over he will find offsets for 
this increase. 

 
4) ADJOURN 
First Selectman Tetreau made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 2:53 pm. Selectman Tymniak 
seconded the motion which carried 3-0. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Jennifer S. Carpenter 
Recording Secretary  


